
           

Dan Davis, Chair
Alex Nemer II, Vice-Chair
Greg Lindsey, Commissioner
Kristy Wages, Commissioner
Adam Armstrong, Commissioner
Jennifer Thomason, Commissioner
Grizelda Castillo, Commissioner
 

Kevin Olson,
Interim Dev. Services Director

Susan Davis,
Planning Tech/HPO

 NOTICE OF MEETING
PLANNING AND ZONING

COMMISSION
November 2, 2023

1:30 p.m.
City Council Chambers 

504 N. Queen Street
Palestine, Texas

 

 

Zoom Link:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87222587511?pwd=YkJWK25UY0hEOFlHZ2l6OVIrMmcrZz09

Meeting ID: 872 2258 7511
Passcode: 427609

One tap mobile
+13462487799,,87222587511#,,,,*427609# US

Note: when you are joining a Zoom meeting by phone, you can use your phone’s dial pad to enter the commands *6 for toggling
mute/unmute and *9 to “raise your hand.” Learn more here.

Follow us live at: facebook.com/palestinetx/

           

A. CALL TO ORDER
 

  

B. PROPOSED CHANGES OF AGENDA ITEMS
 

  

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Any citizen wishing to speak during public comments regarding an item on or off the agenda
may do so during this section of the agenda. All comments must be no more than five
minutes in length. Any comments regarding items, not on the posted agenda may not be
discussed or responded to by the Commissioners. Members of the public may join via Zoom
or in person.
 

  

D. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES
 

  

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

1. Consider approval of minutes from the October 5, 2023, meeting. 
 

F. PUBLIC HEARINGS / DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS   

1. Public hearing and discussion to consider a Specific Use Permit for placement of a fourplex at
the corner of N. Fowler Street and E. Camden Street.
 

G. ADJOURNMENT   

I certify that the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the outdoor bulletin board at the main entrance to

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87222587511?pwd=YkJWK25UY0hEOFlHZ2l6OVIrMmcrZz09
http://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone
http://facebook.com/palestinetx/


I certify that the above Notice of Meeting was posted on the outdoor bulletin board at the main entrance to
City Hall, 504 N. Queen Street, Palestine, Texas, in compliance with Chapter 551 of the Texas
Government Code on Monday, October 30, 2023, at 12:00 p.m.

April Jackson, City Secretary

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA)
PERSONS IN NEED OF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PROCEEDING
SHALL, CONTACT THE CITY SECRETARY'S OFFICE VIA EMAIL AT citysecretary@palestine-tx.org or
903-731-8414.

mailto:therrera@palestine-tx.org


Agenda Date: 11/02/2023
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Susan Davis, Planning Technician
Agenda Item: Consider Approval of Minutes from the October 5, 2023 Meeting
Date Submitted:

SUMMARY:
Consider approval of the Minutes of the October 5, 2023 meeting.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Staff recommends approval of the Minutes.

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:

Attachments
Minutes 



 Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting of October 5, 2023 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON  § 
CITY OF PALESTINE  § 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Palestine convened in a Regular Meeting on Thursday, 
October 5, 2023, at 1:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 504 N. Queen Street, Palestine, Texas, with 
the following people present: Chairman Dan Davis; Commissioners Alex Nemer, Greg Lindsey, Kristy Wages, 
Adam Armstrong, and Jennifer Thomason.  
 
Staff present: Interim Development Services Director Kevin Olson, Planning Tech Susan Davis, and City 
Manager’s Admin Wendy Colotta. 
 
Commissioner Grizelda Castillo was absent.  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
With a quorum present, Chairman Davis called the meeting to order at 1:31 p.m. 
 
PROPOSED CHANGES OF AGENDA ITEMS 
None. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
No public comments were made. 
 
CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 
There were none.  
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Commissioner Thomason made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Nemer to approve minutes from August 
31, 2023, meeting as presented. Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0.   
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ DISCUSSION AND ACTION ITEMS 
 
1. Discussion and possible action regarding the appointment of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Chair and Vice-Chair. 
 
Commissioner Thomason made a motion, seconded by Commission Armstrong to appoint Dan Davis as 
Chairman and Alex Nemer as Vice-Chair.  Upon vote, the motion carried unanimously 6-0. 
 
2. Public Hearing and discussion to consider a Specific Use Permit for placement of a manufactured home 

at 307 Ohio Street, John Arthur Survey, A-4, Block 882, Tract 24 and 25.   
 

Chairman Davis opened the public hearing at 1:35 p.m.  B. J. Langenbau, General Manager for Academy Homes 
in Palestine confirmed that the 32’ x 48’ home meets all the Specific Use requirements and that the state 
inspected pad site will be setback 100 feet.  Speaking in favor were Applicant Iris Galvan confirmed that she 
will live in the home with her family.  No one spoke in opposition.  Chairman Davis reported nine comment 
forms sent, two were returned in favor, and no comment forms were returned.  Chairman Davis closed the 
public hearing at 1:45 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Nemer made a motion, seconded by Commissioner Armstrong, to approve the application for 
Specific Use Permit.  Upon vote, the motion carried 6-0. 
 
ADJOURN 
With no other business to come before the Commission, Commissioner Nemer made a motion, seconded by 
Commissioner Armstrong, to adjourn the meeting at 1:48 p.m. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
  



 Minutes of the Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting of October 5, 2023 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 2nd DAY OF NOVEMBER 2023. 
 
 
             
       Dan Davis, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Susan Davis, Planning Tech 



Agenda Date: 11/02/2023
To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Susan Davis, Planning Technician
Agenda Item: Consider Specific Use Permit for Fourplex - Fowler/Camden
Date Submitted: 10/30/2023

SUMMARY:
Consider a Specific Use Permit for a fourplex to be placed at the corner of N. Fowler Street and E.
Camden Street.  The subject property is located within the Mixed Residential Zoning District and is also
part of the Northside Historic District.  Both townhomes and multifamily are permitted uses in Mixed
Residential, and are allowed in a historic overlay by Specific Use.  The applicant, NLB Holding, has
submitted plans that were reviewed and approved by the Historic Landmark Commission during a
Regular Meeting on August 15, 2023.

On October 16, 2023, twenty-one notices were mailed to property owners within 200 feet of the location
of the specific use permit request. Three have been returned in favor of the request. Seven have been
returned in opposition.  Reasons for opposition include that the property is in a historic district, lot size,
parking, and noise affecting the peacefulness of the neighborhood.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
For discussion and consideration.

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL:

Attachments
Staff Report 
Comment Forms 
Mailing List and Certified Mail Cards 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 1 of 13 

 

 REPORT FOR PLANNING & ZONING 

         AGENDA DATE: June 26, 2023 

      ITEM XZ-23-4-1 / STAFF REPORT 

 

 

REQUEST:  A specific use permit to allow a two-bedroom fourplex to be 

placed at the southwest corner of North Fowler Street and East 

Camden Street. 

APPLICANT: NLB Holding, LLC 

EXHIBITS (1) Historic Landmark Commission Minutes, (2) Preliminary Site 

Plan and Drawings, and (3) photos proposed site and adjacent 

properties. 

PREPARED BY:  Susan Davis, Planning Tech 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

LOCATION: Corner of North Fowler Street and East Camden Street 

ZONING: MR, Mixed Residential 

OVERLAY ZONES: Northside Historic District 

LAND USE: Vacant 

ADJACENT ZONING: Mixed Residential to the north, east, south, and west; Retail 

Commercial one block to the north 

ACREAGE: 0.2574 +/- 

SUBDIVISION: Ezell’s Addition 

  

SUMMARY OF REQUEST 

NLB Holding, LLC applied for a specific use permit to allow a two-story fourplex at 

southwest the corner of North Fowler Street and East Camden Street. The property is 

located within the Mixed Residential Zoning District and is part of the Northside Historic 

District. Both multifamily and townhomes are permitted within the MR zoning district and 

are allowed in a historic overlay by Specific Use Permit. 

PROPERTY ZONING AND LAND USE 

The property where the fourplex is proposed to be located is zoned Mixed Residential and 

is part of the Northside Historic District. Adjacent zoning districts include Retail 

Commercial one block north.  



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 2 of 13 

 

 

WATER, SEWER, AND STREET ACCESS 

Public water, sewer and street access are available from North Fowler Street.  

PUBLIC NOTICE 

On October 16, 2023, twenty-one notices were mailed to property owners within 200-

feet of the location of the specific use permit request. Three have been returned in favor 

of the request. Seven have been returned in opposition.  Reasons for opposition include 

that the property is in a historic district, lot size, parking, and noise affecting the 

peacefulness of the neighborhood. 

The Historic Landmark Commission considered an Application for Certificate of 

Appropriateness for this project during the July 18, 2023, meeting.  Dennis Scott, an 

architect with DJS Architect, who was hired by the owner of the property to design a 

quadplex discussed the plans including parking.  Recommendations were made to flip the 

plans to allow windows on the Camden Street side instead of shear wall, alternate façade, 

and single-hung divided light windows.  The item was tabled upon a unanimous 6-0 vote. 

The Historic Landmark Commission considered revised plans submitted by the architect, 

which includes more traditional windows and clipped gables.  Upon vote, the item was 

approved by 5-0 vote. 

ZONING AND DEVELOPMENT REQUIREMENTS 

The historic guidelines adopted by the City of Palestine address the construction of new 

buildings (infill construction) within historic districts. The guidelines offer suggestions for 

creating compatible new designs that will be harmonious with historic properties. Under 

the guidelines, the Historic Landmarks Commission has been directed to only approve 

new construction that is compatible with historic design, materials, and other features.  



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 3 of 13 

 

If the specific use permit is approved, the fourplex will have to meet the requirements 

set forth by the Zoning Code which requires compliance with setbacks, off-street parking 

for two vehicles per unit, screening such as fencing, historic preservation, and fire safety 

issues.  A pre-development meeting was held on September 27, 2023, with the architect 

and city staff to discuss the requirements and plans.  

Commercial plans are reviewed by Burgess & Nipple. 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT LOCATION MAP 

 

 

STAFF COMMENTS  

There are no structures on the property where the fourplex is proposed to be located. 

Most of the area is populated with single family residences.  However, Pentecom LLC, a 

data conversion firm, is located across the street from the subject property.  



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 4 of 13 

 

Exhibit A 

Historic Landmark Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 5 of 13 

 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 6 of 13 

 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 7 of 13 

 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 8 of 13 

 

Exhibit B 

Proposed Plans 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 9 of 13 

 

 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 10 of 13 

 

Exhibit C 

Photos of Proposed Site and Adjacent Properties 

 

 
Proposed building site 

 

 
114 Camden – located behind the proposed building site 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 11 of 13 

 

 
1015 Fowler – located on the south side of the proposed building site 

 

 
1101 Fowler – located on the north side of the proposed building site 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 12 of 13 

 

 
Back side of 1101 N Cedar – located directly across the street from the proposed 

building site 

 

 
View facing north from N Fowler Street – showing proposed building site on left 

 



 
 

XZ-23-11-1/ 11.02.2023  
S.U.P. Fourplex – Fowler/Camden   Page 13 of 13 

 

 
View facing south on N Fowler Street – proposed building site located on right 

 

 
View facing west on N Fowler Street 

 

 



























200 Foot Radius Mailing List – Corner Camden/Fowler (R29666) 

Property ID Owner Name and Address Mailing Date & CM# ACAD Notes 

30171 Josephine Collins 

111 Camden St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165426 Residential/Single 

Family - 

homestead 

30172 Marvin & Dortha Crain 

113 Camden St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165433 Residential/Single 

Family - 

homestead 

29669 Dan Brown 

104 Camden St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165440 Residential/Single 

Family 

29670 Carolina Hernandez 

110 Camden St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165457 Residential/Single 

Family - 

homestead 

29671 Carolyn Carbajal & Helen 

Greer 

112 Camden St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165464 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1930) 

29668 Linda Walton 

1014 N Sycamore St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165471 Residential/Single 

Family - 

homestead 

29660 Sandra Cody 

111 E Pine St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165488 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1913) 

29658 Paul Torrez 

115 E Pine St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165495 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1920) 

29657 Rochelle Habaradas 

121 E Pine St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165501 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1910) 

29664 Shuffler Properties LTD 

710 W Main St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165518 Residential/Single 

Family 

29665 Rickey & Donna Arnold 

114 E Camden St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165525 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1925) 

29673 Pauline Killion 

115 E Camden 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165532 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1949) 

29674 Luca & Erin Scordari 

106 Romallen 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165549 Residential/Single 

Family 

29675 Darla Rochell 

PO Box 4091 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165556 Residential/Single 

Family (1956) 



29672 David & Carolina 

Dominguez 

1 Anderson Dr 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165563 Residential/Single 

Family 

45515 Pentecom Property LLC 

4999 E FM 321 

Palestine TX 75803 

9589071052701325165570 Across the street 

from the subject 

property – Real 

Commercial 

17778 Sandra Speer 

1025 N Cedar St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165587 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead 

45607 Joe Vetromile & Sharon 

Sharpe 

4904 Grand View Dr 

Athens TX 75752 

9589071052701325165594 Residential/Single 

Family (1915) 

17779 Billy Armstrong 

1017 N Cedar St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165600 Residential/Single 

Family (1950) 

17783 Brian & Loryn Briscoe 

205 E Pine St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165617 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1915) 

17780 Milton F & Betty C Conway 

1004 Fowler St 

Palestine TX 75801 

9589071052701325165624 Residential/Single 

Family – 

homestead (1920) 

    
 






















	Agenda
	AI_4148_Consider Approval of Minutes from the October 5, 2023 Meeting
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI_4149_Consider Specific Use Permit for Fourplex - Fowler/Camden
	       ATT_Staff Report
	       ATT_Comment Forms
	       ATT_Mailing List and Certified Mail Cards
	200 Foot Radius Mailing List w cmrrr.pdf
	DOC.pdf


